
 1 

 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MEETING AGENDA 
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 26, 2015 

Regular Meeting - 6:30 PM 
 

City Hall – Beryl P. Robinson, Jr. Conference Room 
317 Broad Street, Nevada City, CA  95959 

 
 

MISSION STATEMENT  
The City of Nevada City is dedicated to preserving and enhancing its small town  

character and historical architecture while providing quality public services for our 
 current and future residents, businesses and visitors. 

 
 

 Jennifer Ray, Mayor 
Robert Bergman, Council Member   Evans Phelps, Vice Mayor 
Terri Andersen, Council Member   Duane Strawser, Council Member 

 
The City Council welcomes you to its meetings which are scheduled at 6:30 PM on the 2nd and 4th Wednesdays of 
each month.  Your interest is encouraged and appreciated.  This meeting is recorded on DVD and is televised on 
local public television Channel 17.  Other special accommodations may be requested to the City Clerk 72 hours in 
advance of the meeting.  Please turn off all cell phones or similar devices.  Action may be taken on any agenda item.  
Agenda notices are available at City Hall.  Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after 
distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Hall at 317 Broad Street, Nevada 
City, CA during normal business hours. 
 
ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL ON ANY ITEM ON THIS 
AGENDA: After receiving recognition from the Mayor, give your name and address, and then your comments or 
questions. Please direct your remarks to the Councilmembers. In order that all interested parties have an opportunity 
to speak, please limit your comments to the specific item under discussion. All citizens will be afforded an 
opportunity to speak, consistent with their Constitutional rights. Time limits shall be at the Mayor's discretion. IF 
YOU CHALLENGE the Council's decision on any matter in court, you will be limited to raising only those issues 
you or someone else raised at the meeting or Public Hearing described on this agenda, or in written correspondence 
delivered to the City Council at, or prior to, the meeting or Public Hearing.   
 

 
 
REGULAR MEETING – 6:30 PM - Call to Order 
 
Roll Call:  Andersen, Bergman, Strawser, Vice Mayor Phelps, & Mayor Ray 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
PROCLAMATION:    
 
PRESENTATION:    
 
BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR 

 
 



 2 

 
1. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
Under Government Code Section 54954.3, members of the public are entitled to address 
the City Council concerning any item within the Nevada City Council’s subject matter 
jurisdiction. Comments on items NOT ON THE AGENDA are welcome at this time.  
Normally, public comments are limited to no more than three minutes each.  Except for 
certain specific exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking 
action on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. 

 
2. COUNCIL MEMBERS REQUESTED ITEMS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

 
3. CONSENT ITEMS: 

 
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are to be considered routine by the City Council 
and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed.  There will be no separate discussion of 
these items unless, before the City Council votes on the motion to adopt, members of the 
Council, City staff or the public request specific items to be removed from the Consent Calendar 
for separate discussion and action. 

 
A. Subject: Award of Measure S Paving Contract  

Recommendation: Award the Measure S Paving Contract to Central Valley 
Engineering and Asphalts, Inc. of Roseville, CA in the amount of $426,705 plus 
$50,000 contingencies. 
 

B. Subject: Acceptance of Unrestricted Anonymous Donation of $5,000 
Recommendation: Pass a Motion accepting unrestricted anonymous donation of 
$5,000. 
 

C. Subject: Declaring Three City Vehicles as Surplus 
Recommendation: Pass Resolution No. 2015-XX declaring the 2008 Ford Crown 
Victoria, 2001 Dodge Durango SUV, and 1985 GMC Sierra 1500 as surplus property 
and authorize the Assistant City Manager to salvage the surplus property by direct 
sale to BidCal.com Online Auctions. 
 

D. Subject: Quarterly Sales Tax Update – 1st Quarter 2015 
Recommendation:  Receive and File 
 

E. Subject: Implementation of Land Management Plan for Hirschman’s Pond – Sierra 
Nevada Conservancy Proposition 84 Healthy Forests Grant Program 
Recommendation: Authorize Mayor to sign a Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) between Sierra Streams Institute (SSI) and the City of Nevada City Affirming 
Rights to Access and Responsibilities for the Hirschman’s Pond Forest Health 
Project. 
 
 



 3 

F. Subject: Creation of Land Management Plan for Sugarloaf Mountain – Sierra 
Nevada Conservancy Proposition 84 Healthy Forests Grant Program 
Recommendation: Authorize Mayor to sign a letter of support for Sierra Streams 
Institute (SSI) to apply for funding to create a Land Management Plan for the 
Sugarloaf and Old Airport property. 

 
G.  Subject:  Bad Debt Write-Off for Fiscal Year 2014-15 

Recommendation:  Pass Resolution No. 2014-XX Approving Bad Debt Write-Off 
for Fiscal Year 2014-15. 
   

      4.  APPROVAL OF ACTION MINUTES: 
 

A. City Council Meeting – August 12, 2015 
 

5. DEPARTMENT REQUESTED ACTION ITEMS AND UPDATE REPORTS: 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 
A. Subject: Public Hearing to Consider Proposed Rezoning of Property located on Pello 

Lane, Nevada City, to add a “PD” Planned Development overlay to the existing “R2-
AN-SC” zoning (Multiple-family/Annexed/Scenic Corridor) on said property, which 
contains 2.36 acres.   
Recommendation: Hold the Public Hearing and, after consideration, adopt 
Ordinance 2015-XX rezoning the property by adding the “PD” Planned Development 
overlay as approved by the Planning Commission in 2006. 
 

7. OLD BUSINESS: 
 

A. Subject: Consider a 15-year Extension of the Current Development Agreement 
between the City of Nevada City and Kenmawr-Nevada City LLC and Nevada City 
Tech Center, LLC (Second Reading) 
Recommendation: Adopt Ordinance 2015-XX approving and extending the 
proposed 15-year extension of the current Development Agreement, and authorize the 
Mayor to sign the final draft of the extended Agreement. 

 
8. NEW BUSINESS: 

 
A. Subject: City Council Appointments for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 

Recommendation: Appoint City Council Members to City and External Boards, 
Committees and Commissions for Fiscal Year 2015-2016. 
 

B. Subject: Proposal for Terrazzo Lights Pilot Project on Lower Commercial Street 
Recommendation: Authorize Nevada City Chamber of Commerce proposal for 
Terrazzo Lights Pilot Project on Lower Commercial Street. 
 

C. Subject: Nevada City Strategic Investment Fund 



 4 

Recommendation: Review and provide direction to the City Manager to prepare 
draft Strategic Economic Investment Fund guidelines to support programs and 
projects that benefit the City’s long-term economic development goals. 
 

D. Subject: Consideration of Supporting a Stage Host Application for The Amgen Tour 
of California 
Recommendation: Authorize a City contribution to offset local host expenses if 
Nevada City is selected as a Stage Host for The Amgen Tour of California in an 
amount to be determined by the City Council. 
 

E. Subject: Placement of Council-Requested Items on City Council Agendas 
Recommendation: Discuss and provide direction to the City Manager. 
 

9. CORRESPONDENCE: 
 

10. ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 

11. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 
Certification of Posting of Agenda 
I, Corey Shaver, Deputy City Clerk for the City of Nevada City, declare that the foregoing agenda for the August 26, 
2015 Regular Meeting of the Nevada City City Council was posted August 21, 2015 at the office of the City of 
Nevada City (City Hall). The agenda is also posted on the City’s website www.nevadacityca.gov. 
 
Signed this August 21, 2015 at Nevada City, California 
 
 
__________________________________, Corey Shaver, Deputy City Clerk 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
CITY OF NEVADA CITY 

City Council 
Long Range Calendar 

 
September 7, 2015 Labor Day 
September 9, 2015 Regular City Council Meeting (Admissions Day-floating holiday) 
September 23, 2015 Regular City Council Meeting 
October 12, 2015  Columbus Day 
October 14, 2015  Regular City Council Meeting 
October 28, 2015  Regular City Council Meeting 
 
NOTE:  This list is for planning purposes; items may shift depending on timing and capacity of a meeting. 
 
NOTICE:  As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to 
remove or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, 
impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally abusive 
while addressing said Council and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
















REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL        City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
August 26, 2015       www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

TITLE: Acceptance of Unrestricted Anonymous Donation $5,000 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Pass a Motion accepting unrestricted anonymous donation of 
$5,000. 
 
CONTACT:  Mark Prestwich, City Manager; Catrina Olson, Assistant City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION: Members and supporters of the Nevada City 
community from time to time wish to support the community by making donations to the 
City. The City welcomes unrestricted donations as well as restricted donations that 
enhance City services, reduce costs that the City would otherwise incur, or that provide 
a benefit to the City.  
 
The City recently received an anonymous unrestricted donation in the form of a 
$5,000.00 check dated July 14, 2015 (Bank of America). Pursuant to Government Code 
Section 37354, “The legislative body may accept or reject any gift, bequest, or devise 
made to or for the city, or to or for any of its officers in their official capacity or in trust for 
any public purpose.” Government Code Section 37355 states, “If the terms of a gift, 
bequest, or devise do not prescribe or limit the uses to which the property received or 
the income or increase from it is put, it may be put to such uses as the legislative body 
prescribes.”  Staff recommends the City Council accept the unrestricted donation. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Donations to the City provide revenue to fund new and existing 
facilities, projects, programs and activities for the benefit of the City and its residents.  
 
ATTACHMENT:  None 
 



 
 
REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
August 26, 2015       www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Declaring Three City Vehicles as Surplus 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Pass Resolution 2015-XX declaring the Police Department’s 
2008 Ford Crown Victoria, 2001 Dodge Durango SUV, and the Department of Public 
Works (WWTP) 1985 GMC Sierra 1500 as surplus property and authorize the Assistant 
City Manager to salvage the surplus property by direct sale to BidCal.com Online 
Auctions. 
 
CONTACT:  Catrina Olson, Assistant City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  It is good business practice to declare an aged 
vehicle as surplus so it can be removed from the City inventory and free up needed 
storage. Each of these vehicles are at 100k miles or more and two of the vehicles are 
10+ years old and cannot be effectively used by the City.   
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: Not applicable. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: The City will receive a portion of proceeds from the 
sale of the surplus vehicles.   
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
 Resolution No. 2015-XX 

 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-XX 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF NEVADA CITY 
DECLARING THE 2008 FORD CROWN VICTORIA, 2001 DODGE DURANGO SUV, 

AND 1985 GMC SIERRA 1500 AS SURPLUS 
 

 
 
WHEREAS, it is good business practice to declare vehicles that are aged and with high 
miles as surplus so they can be removed from the City inventory and to free up needed 
storage; and 
 
WHEREAS, vehicles that have 100k miles or more and two of the vehicles are 10+ 
years in age and cannot be used effectively by the City. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the 2008 Ford Crown Victoria VIN 
2FAHP71V08X132695, 2001 Dodge Durango SUV VIN 1B4HS28Z51F644648 and 
1985 GMC Sierra 1500 VIN 1GTEK14N2FJ509442, are hereby declared surplus and 
the Assistant City Manager is directed to proceed with disposal of the vehicles. 
 
Passed and Adopted at the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Nevada 
City on the 26th day of August by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN: 
        __________________________ 
        Jennifer Ray, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 
 







REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
August 26, 2015       www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE: Implementation of Land Management Plan for Hirschman’s Pond – Sierra 
Nevada Conservancy Proposition 84 Healthy Forests Grant Program 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Authorize Mayor to sign a Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) between Sierra Streams Institute (SSI) and the City of Nevada City Affirming 
Rights to Access and Responsibilities for the Hirschman’s Pond Forest Health Project. 
 
CONTACT:  Dawn Zydonis, Parks & Recreation Supervisor 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION: At the August 12, 2015 City Council meeting the 
Council approved the mayor to sign a letter of support for Sierra Streams to apply for an 
implementation grant for fire clearing on the Hirschman’s Pond property.  The grant 
application also requires that the City – as the land owner – agree to an MOU that gives 
SSI permission to be on City property for the proposed work. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: A Notice of Exemption was completed for the 
Land Management Plan and an Implementation of the Plan. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Sierra Streams Institute will be the lead agency on the grant 
application.  Grant funding will cover all costs of completing the work on the 
Hirschman’s Pond Property.  There will be funds available through the grant to cover 
staff time to assist with the project. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 Memorandum of Understanding 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN 

SIERRA STREAMS INSTITUTE AND CITY OF NEVADA CITY 

Affirming Rights of Access and Responsibilities for 

the Hirschman’s Pond Forest Health Project 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is made by and between Sierra Streams Institute (“SSI”) 
and the City of Nevada City (“City”) effective on the date the last party executes this MOU, to set forth a 
statement of mutual understanding regarding access to the City-owned property at Hirschman’s Pond 
for completion and maintenance of the Hirschman’s Pond Forest Health Project. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, City owns the property known as Hirschman’s Pond which includes several parcels that were 
acquired between 2004 and 2007 with the intention of preserving the property as open space; and  

WHEREAS, SSI and City have partnered to develop the Hirschman’s Pond Land Management Plan, with 
funding from Sierra Nevada Conservancy and with final approval of the plan by the City Council on 
[date]; and 

WHEREAS, SSI is developing a proposal to Sierra Nevada Conservancy for further funding to implement 
said Plan; 

NOW THEREFORE, the parties to this MOU agree to the following statement of mutual understanding. 

Right of Access 

The City affirms SSI’s right to access Hirschman’s Pond as long as may be necessary for the purpose of 
completing and maintaining the proposed implementation of the Hirschman’s Pond Land Management 
Plan, and for monitoring as needed. 

Project Management 

The respective roles and responsibilities of the parties are understood to be as follows: 

• SSI will perform all implementation and monitoring tasks that pertain to the proposed project 
• City Parks and Recreation Department will retain responsibility for maintenance of Hirschman’s 

Pond as a recreational and wildlife resource 
• SSI will be the project’s fiscal lead and will coordinate with Sierra Nevada Conservancy if funded, 

including all progress and financial reporting 
• City will review and approve all plans and work performance 

Agreed to the parties whose signatures appear below: 

Sierra Streams Institute 

___________________________________ 

Title: ______________________________ 

Date:_________________________, 2015 

City of Nevada City 

___________________________________ 

Title: _______________________________ 

Date:__________________________, 2015 



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
August 26, 2015       www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE: Creation of Land Management Plan for Sugarloaf Mountain – Sierra 
Nevada Conservancy Proposition 84 Healthy Forests Grant Program 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Authorize Mayor to sign a letter of support for Sierra Streams 
Institute (SSI) to apply for funding to create a Land Management Plan for the Sugarloaf 
and Old Airport property. 
 
CONTACT:  Dawn Zydonis, Parks & Recreation Supervisor 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION: Sierra Streams Institute would like to submit a grant 
application to Sierra Nevada Conservancy for a Proposition 84 Healthy Forests Grant 
Program.  SSI was awarded funding under this same grant program to create a Land 
Management Plan for the Hirschman’s Pond property, which was adopted by the City 
Council in 2010. 
 
SSI kept the City well informed of the work and studies that they were completing on the 
Hirschman’s property and staff believe they would be a good partner for the 
development of a Sugarloaf Land Management Plan as well.  This plan would include a 
focus on the Old Airport Property as well.  The grant application will be more compelling 
to Sierra Nevada Conservancy if there are more acres of land that are being included in 
the project.  The Land Management Plan will be created with a focus on fire clearing 
while keeping animal habitat intact and preserving native plants. 
 
This project is consistent with the City’s goal to be good stewards our open space 
parcels. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  The Land Management Plan will need to go 
through the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) process. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Sierra Streams Institute will be the lead agency on the grant 
application.  Grant funding will cover all costs of completing the Plan.  There will be 
funds available through the grant to cover staff time to assist with the project. 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
 Letter of Support 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


 

 

Sierra Nevada Conservancy 
11521 Blocker Drive Suite 205 
Auburn, CA 95603 

August 26, 2015 

Dear Sierra Nevada Conservancy Grant Team, 

On behalf of the City of Nevada City I am writing to affirm the City’s support for the proposal by Sierra 
Streams Institute entitled “Sugarloaf Mountain Fuel Reduction Project”, an effort to complete planning 
and permitting for vegetation management work on Sugarloaf Mountain and our nearby Old Airport 
Property. 

The City of Nevada City owns the property known as Sugarloaf Mountain, located in Nevada City, CA. 
The property was purchased by the City in January 2011. In the City’s General Plan adopted in 1985, 
Sugarloaf was designated as property that the city would like to acquire and maintain as open space for 
the scenic backdrop it provides to the City, as well as the potential for hiking trails and other low impact 
recreational activities. One of the first goals that the city identified upon acquisition of the property was 
fire clearing. 

The Old Airport Property was acquired by the City in 1981.  There are bike trails on the property and 
many people use the space for star gazing.  Like Sugarloaf Mountain the City’s purpose for this property 
is to keep the area around the City green with Open Space parcels that can provide passive recreational 
opportunities. 

The City allows groups such as Friends of Sugarloaf, Sierra Streams Institute, and the Fire Safe Council of 
Nevada County, access to these properties for the purposes of doing fire clearing and removal of 
invasive non-native vegetation. In cooperation with our partners, the City has made great strides in 
removing highly flammable materials from these spaces. There is much more work to be done and the 
City embraces opportunities and partnerships that enable that work to be completed. 

Please contact our City Manager, Mark Prestwich, if you need further information about this worthwhile 
proposal. 

Regards, 

 

Jennifer M. Ray, Ph.D 
Mayor 



 
 
REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
August 26, 2015       www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Bad Debt Write-Off for Fiscal Year 2014-15 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Pass Resolution No. 2015-XX Approving Bad Debt Write-Off for 
Fiscal Year 2014-15. 
 
CONTACT:  Catrina Olson, Assistant City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  Some residents of the City of Nevada City incur a 
debt for water and/or sewer usage and there is limited opportunity to collect those 
debts. Good accounting procedures direct the City to write off debts doubtful for 
collection. 
 
Three delinquent accounts have been forwarded to the Nevada County Tax Collectors 
Department as they are the legal owners of that property and three accounts have been 
sent to collections as they are not the property owners but have vacated the property. 
The amount proposed for bad-debt write off is $2,943.18. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: Not applicable. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:  The City has been unable to collect to date on the 
bad-debt. 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
 Resolution No. 2015-XX 

 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


 
RESOLUTION NO. 2015-XX 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY APPROVING  

BAD DEBT WRITE-OFF FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014-15 
 
 

WHEREAS, some previous residents of the City of Nevada City incurred a debt for water and 
sewer usage to the City of Nevada City; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is limited opportunity to collect those debts; and 
 
WHEREAS, good accounting procedures direct the City to write off debts doubtful for collection; 
and 
  
WHEREAS, three delinquent customers, Sasaki, Koski, and Olson have been forwarded to the 
Nevada County Tax Collectors Department to be collected on the property tax roll. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Nevada City, hereby 
approves the write-off of the following bad debt as listed: 
 
Customer   Amount Owed   Utility     
 
Shauna Droivold  $     94.00    Sewer 
Beau Miller   $     27.30    Water/Sewer 
Carolene Watkins  $   631.88    Water 
Ronald Sasaki   $   744.00    Sewer 
Bart Koski   $   454.00    Water 
Mark Olson   $   992.00    Sewer 
 
TOTAL   $ 2943.18 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Nevada City 
on the 26th day of August by the following vote: 
   
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
          
      _______________________________ 
      Jennifer Ray, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 



 
CITY OF NEVADA CITY 

DRAFT SUMMARY MINUTES 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF AUGUST 12, 2015 

 
 
NOTE:  This meeting is available to view on the City’s website www.nevadacityca.gov – Go to 
Quick Links and Click on Agendas & Minutes and find the Archived Videos in the middle of the 
screen.  Select the meeting date and Click on Video to watch the meeting.  For website assistance, 
please contact Corey Shaver, Deputy City Clerk at (530) 265-2496, ext 133. 
 
-  City Council Meetings are available on DVD.  To order, contact City Hall - cost is $15.00 per DVD.   
- Closed Session Meetings are not recorded. 
 
 
Closed Session called to order at 6:00 PM 
 
Regular meeting called to order at 6:30 PM 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Present: Council Members Phelps, Strawser, Bergman, Mayor Andersen, Vice Mayor Ray 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Closed Session – Consulting City Attorney DeGraw announced for staff to proceed as directed. 
 
PROCLAMATION: 
 
150th Anniversary of Nevada City Theatre 
 
PRESENTATION: 
 
Swearing In Ceremony – Canine Officer Rüdiger 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR – PUBLIC COMMENT (Per Government Code Section 54954.3) 
 
John Givens, Kathryn Barkley, Tom Andersen, Gus DelValle commented - Please refer to the August 12, 
2015 meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevadacityca.gov. 
 
2.   COUNCILMEMBERS REQUESTED ITEMS AND COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
 
Council Member Bergman 
ERC – Update on Digital Media Campus. 
Request item for a future Council meeting: 

1) Re-visit Measure L funds available for AMGEN 2015 
2) Dissolve Park & Recreation Committee 

 
3.  CONSENT ITEMS: 
 
A.  Subject: Memorial Bench Request for Pioneer Park 
Recommendation: Pass a motion approving a bench with plaque to be placed at the Pioneer Park 
playground in memory of Donna Rocker. 
 
 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


Regular Meeting of the City Council of Nevada City 
August 12, 2015 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
B.  Subject: Approval of Hiring a New City Planner 
Recommendation: Approve hiring of Amy Wolfson as the City of Nevada City’s City Planner pursuant to 
City’s Personnel Policy Guide. 
 
C.  Subject: Implementation of Land Management Plan for Hirschman’s Pond – Sierra Nevada 
Conservancy Proposition 84 Healthy Forests Grant Program 
Recommendation: Authorize Mayor to sign a letter of support for Sierra Streams Institute to apply for 
funding to complete fire clearing on the Hirschman’s Pond property. 

 
D.  Subject: Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for Deer Creek Environs Fuel Reduction Project 
Recommendation: Accept the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Sierra Streams Institute, 
The Fire Safe Council and the City of Nevada City and approve the Mayor to sign on behalf of the City. 
 
Action:  Motion by Strawser, seconded by Bergman to approve Items A, B, C and D as presented. 
(Approved 5 - 0) 
 
4.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
A.  Regular City Council Meeting – July 22, 2015 
 
MINUTE ORDER:  City Manager Prestwich stated the Minutes for July 22, 2015 will be pulled. Future 
written minutes will be action items with a motion and a vote only and the video of the meeting will be the 
official record. Verbatim transcript will be prepared for the meeting of July 22, 2015 only. 
 
5.  DEPARTMENT REQUESTED ACTION ITEMS AND UPDATE REPORTS: 
 
A.  Subject:  League of Women Voters Request for Use of Nevada City Council 
 
MINUTE ORDER:  City Manager to authorize the League of Women Voters to use the City Council 
Chambers the first Friday of each month from noon to 1:00 PM for their monthly board meetings. 
 
6.  PUBLIC HEARING: 
 
A.  Subject: Public Hearing to Consider a 15-year Extension of the Current Development Agreement 
between the City of Nevada City and Kenmawr-Nevada City LLC and Nevada City Tech Center, LLC 
 
Action:  Motion by Phelps, seconded by Bergman to adopt Ordinance No. 2015-XX Approving an 
Extension of the Existing Development Agreement Between the City of Nevada City and KenMawr-
Nevada City, LLC and Campus Properties, LLC Owners of Property on Providence Mine Road – First 
Reading, read title only. 
(Approved 5 – 0) 
 
B.  Subject: Public Hearing to Consider Adoption of Proposed Amendments to the Existing Nevada City 
Design Guidelines, Relative to Architectural Review 
 
Action:  Motion by Strawser, seconded by Bergman adopt Design Guidelines. 
(Approved 5 – 0) 
 
7.  OLD BUSINESS: 
None 
 
8.  NEW BUSINESS: 
None 
 



Regular Meeting of the City Council of Nevada City 
August 12, 2015 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
 
9.  CORRESPONDENCE: 
None 
 
10.  ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
Please refer to the August 12, 2015 meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevadacityca.gov. 
Please refer to the video. 
 
11.  CITY MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
Please refer to the August 12, 2015 meeting video on the City’s website at www.nevadacityca.gov. 
Please refer to the video. 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Action:  Motion by Phelps, seconded by Andersen to adjourn – 8:09 PM 
(Approved 5 – 0) 
 

 
___________________________________ 

       Jennifer Ray, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Niel Locke, City Clerk 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/
http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
          Nevada City, CA  95959 
August 26, 2015        www.nevadacityca.gov 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
TITLE:   Public Hearing to Consider Proposed Rezoning of Property located on Pello 

Lane, Nevada City, to add a “PD” Planned Development overlay to the existing 
“R2-AN-SC” zoning (Multiple-family/Annexed/Scenic Corridor) on said 
property, which contains 2.36 acres.   

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Hold the Public Hearing and, after consideration, adopt Ordinance 2015-
XX rezoning the property by adding the “PD” Planned Development overlay as approved by the 
Planning Commission in 2006. 
 
CONTACT:  Cindy Siegfried, City Planner 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  The Planning Commission, in May of 2006 approved a tentative 
map, site plan and PD Planned Development Overlay for the “Pello Lane Project”; such project 
proposed an 11-lot residential subdivision with 15 residential units (11 primary and four second 
units).  The “PD” overlay as defined in Zoning Ordinance Section 17.68.230 allows for greater 
flexibility in the design of the development which would not otherwise be possible through strict 
interpretation of the zoning standards, and encourages design of well-planned facilities.  With the 
Pello Lane project, the development places the lots in the interior of the parcel, reduces the front 
and side yard setbacks on the residential lots, includes an extensive landscaping plan and 
provides a large portion of the lot remaining in open space. 
 
The owner of the property is pursuing recordation of the final map approved in 2006 and subject 
to several State of California extensions of time; the map is valid until May of 2017.  The Planning 
Commission, at their meeting of July 16, 2015 approved a revised architectural review application 
as to the design of the homes and approved the landscaping plan.   
 
With the nearing of the recordation of the final map, staff was unable to locate the mechanism 
which officially rezoned the property.  With the Council’s adoption of the ordinance rezoning the 
property by adding the “PD” overlay, the project can continue with the completion process. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: None as the environmental process occurred with the 
2006 approval. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 City map location of property and Site Plan 
 Ordinance 2015-XX  

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL     City of Nevada City 
          317 Broad Street 
          Nevada City, CA  95959 
August 26, 2015        www.nevadacityca.gov 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Consider a 15-year Extension of the Current Development Agreement 

between the City of Nevada City and Kenmawr-Nevada City LLC and Nevada 
City Tech Center, LLC 

 
RECOMMENDATION:   Adopt Ordinance 2015-XX approving and extending the proposed 15-
year extension of the current Development Agreement, and authorize the Mayor to sign the final 
draft of the extended Agreement. 
 
CONTACT:  Cindy Siegfried, City Planner 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  The City originally entered into a Development Agreement 
regarding the subject property with then owner Grass Valley Group on November 12, 1985.  The 
City Council, on December 11, 2000, approved an extension of that Development Agreement with 
the new owner, Tektronix, Inc. for 15 years to January 9, 2016.  The Development Agreement’s 
policies, rules and regulations are currently valid and the current owners (Kenmawr-Nevada City 
LLC and Nevada City Tech Center, LLC both wish to extend the Agreement; such extension will 
continue to affect future build-out of the two properties.  
 
The owners desire to continue development of a business park project, consisting of two 
properties of approximately 400,000 square feet of light industrial space, and 20,000 square feet 
of related facilities; each of these two parcel are entitled to 200,000 square feet of building space 
and 10,000 square feet of related ancillary facility space. The project will continue to generate 
jobs and revenue which, as previously found in entering into the Development Agreement and 
extending it, will benefit the City and its residents.  
 
The Planning Commission, at their meeting of July 16, 2015, held a public hearing and considered 
an extension of the current Development Agreement by entering into a new proposed 
Development Agreement between the City of Nevada City and the current owners (Kenmawr-
Nevada City, LLC and Nevada City Tech Center, LLC of two separate parcels located on 
Providence Mine Road for a term of 15 years; said properties are commonly referred to as the 
Nevada City Tech Center and the prior Textronix/Grass Valley Group site (containing 112 acres). 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: The proposed Development Agreement extension is 
found to be consistent with prior Council findings regarding environmental review under the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), referencing the prior Environmental Impact Report 
(SCH #8310717) and as found in the approved Agreement Exhibits.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  The proposed Development Agreement is attached; it contains minor changes 
to the Agreement which reflect an updated land use map indicating the approved R3, R2 and R1 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


zone changes approved in 2011 and a clarification of the permitted uses associated with the 
property’s Industrial/Employment Center zoning. 
 
 Ordinance 2015-XX, Approving Extension of Development Agreement  
 Proposed Development Agreement (original DA with strikeout) 

 



ORDINANCE NUMBER 2015-XX 
 

CITY OF NEVADA CITY 
APPROVING AN EXTENSION OF  

THE EXISTING DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN THE CITY OF NEVADA CITY AND  

KENMAWR-NEVADA CITY, LLC 
AND CAMPUS PROPERTIES, LLC 

OWNERS OF PROPERTY ON PROVIDENCE MINE ROAD  
 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing at their meeting of August 12, 
2015 to consider an extension of the current Development Agreement between the 
City of Nevada City and Tektronix, Inc. entered into on December 22, 2000 for 
another fifteen (15) years by entering into an agreement on similar terms with 
Kenmawr-Nevada City, LLC and Nevada City Tech Center, LLC the current 
owners of the subject property now consisting of two separate parcels (containing 
approximately 112 acres) located on Providence Mine Road for a term of 15 years; 
said properties are commonly referred to as the Nevada City Tech Center and the 
prior Textronix/Grass Valley Group site. 
 
The City originally entered into a Development Agreement regarding the subject 
property with then owner Grass Valley Group on November 12, 1985.  The City 
Council, on December 11, 2000, approved an extension of that Development 
Agreement for 15 years to January 9, 2016.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Nevada 
City as follows: 
 
Section 1   Legislative Findings  
 

1. The proposed Development Agreement extension is found to be consistent 
with prior Council findings regarding environmental review under the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), referencing the prior 
Environmental Impact Report (SCH #8310717) and as found in the 
approved Agreement Exhibits, as found in Ordinance 2000-07, dated 
December 11, 2000. 

 
2. Further extension of Agreement will continue to affect future build-out of the 

two properties as a business park project for light industrial use and related 
facilities continuing to generate jobs and revenue which will benefit the City 
and its residents.   

 
3. The Planning Commission held a public hearing at their meeting of July16, 

2015 and recommended the City Council approve the extension of the 
Development Agreement for a 15-year period.  



 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular scheduled meeting of the City Council of 
the City of Nevada City held this 12th day of August, 2015, by the following vote: 

 
 

AYES:  
 

NOES:  
 

ABSTAIN:  
 

ABSENT:  
        
           
      __________________________ 
                     Mayor 
 

ATTEST: _________________________ 
       Niel Locke, City Clerk 
 
 



















































































































REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL 
         City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
August 26, 2015       www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  City Council Appointments for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Appoint City Council Members to City and External Boards, 
Committees and Commissions for Fiscal Year 2015-2016. 
 
CONTACT:  Mark Prestwich, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  City Council Members regularly participate as 
members of various boards, committees and commissions. City Council Members are 
appointed to these bodies by either the full City Council or Mayor. Terms vary as 
described in the attached “Commission/Committee Description & Purpose” document. A 
summary of current external and City boards, committees and commissions is provided 
below. Prior year appointments are included for reference purposes.  
 

EXTERNAL ORGANIZATIONS 
 

 2014/15 Appointee 2014/15 Alternate Appointed by 
LAFCo Robert Bergman Duane Strawser City Council 
NCTC/Airport 
Commission/Nevada 
County Transit 

Terri Andersen Duane Strawser City Council 

Solid Waste & 
Hazardous Waste 
Committee 

Duane Strawser Evans Phelps City Council 

Economic Resource 
Council 

Robert Bergman Duane Strawser City Council 

Sierra Economic 
Development Corp. 

Out of rotation N/A City Council 

City Selection 
Committee 

Mayor Mayor Pro Tem N/A 

 
CITY COMMITTEES 

 
 2014/15 Appointee 2014/15 Alternate Appointed by 

Parks & Recreation Duane Strawser 
Jennifer Ray 

N/A City Council* 

Measure S Patti Foster 
Mike Barbar 
Rod Brown 
Conley Weaver 
Niel Locke 

N/A City Council 

Courthouse Robert Bergman N/A City Council 
Fire Joint Operations Robert Bergman  

Duane Strawser 
N/A Mayor 

 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


*Nominated by Mayor; Confirmed by City Council 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
ATTACHMENT:   

 
 Commission/Committee Description & Purpose 



COMMISSION/COMMITTEE DESCRIPTION & PURPOSE 
 
 

 
Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) 
Created by the California Legislature in 1963 with the duties to oversee any boundary changes of City 
boundaries and special districts (Fire, NID, etc). The LAFCo office is located at the Nevada County 
Government Center. LAFCo members also review and adopt Nevada City’s Sphere of Influence Plan 
which is required to be updated every five years (last adopted in 2008). This Sphere of Influence Plan 
is a requirement of State law and ensures that any changes in city boundaries occur in a logical 
manner and that city services are available to serve the area. 
Meets:  Third Thursday every other month 
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 
 
Nevada County Transportation Commission (NCTC) 
The Mission of the NCTC is to plan, communicate, and coordinate with citizens and decision makers 
of Nevada County, Grass Valley, Nevada City, Truckee and Caltrans to create a balanced regional 
system. This includes administration of regional, state, and federal funding for projects related to 
roadways, bridges, public transportation services, railways, airports, bicycle facilities, and pedestrian 
amenities. In development these transportation solutions, the NCTC initiates design concepts, 
engineering feasibility studies, environmental studies, and proposes funding sources to construct 
transportation improvements. Once these tasks are completed, projects are turned over to Caltrans or 
to a local jurisdiction for construction. 
Meet:  Third Wednesday every other month 
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 
 
Nevada County Airport Commission 
The Nevada County Airport’s Mission is to develop and deliver safe and efficient aviation facilities for 
Nevada County residents, businesses, visitors, and the CDF fire suppression base, through a 
commitment to quality services, professional competence and fiscal responsibility. The Nevada 
County Airport Commission reviews and recommends action on Airport policy matters, operations, 
and development to the Board of Supervisors. 
Meet:  Only when necessary for Airport Land Use 
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 
 
Nevada County Transit Services Commission 
The Transit Services Division of the Dept of Transportation and Sanitation is responsible for the 
administration and delivery of public transit and paratransit services, primarily in western Nevada 
County. The Transit Services Division operates the Gold Country Stage, a fixed rote bus system 
serving western Nevada County, and administers a contract for the provision of specialized paratransit 
services for persons with disabilities. Bot services are operated pursuant to a joint powers agreement 
executed by Nevada County and the Cities of Grass Valley and Nevada City. 
Meet:  Third Wednesday of every other month at 8:15 a.m. and held at Grass Valley City Hall, Nevada 
City, City Hall, Nevada County Eric Rood Center, Truckee Town Hall. 
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 
 
Solid & Hazardous Waste Commission (Nevada County) 
This Commission assists the County in the management of solid and hazardous waste, and whose 
participation, review, and recommendation will be required before the County of Nevada may take any 
final action on solid and hazardous waste matters. The Commission will assist in the development of a 
comprehensive log-range plan for the disposal and recycling of solid and hazardous waste within the 
County, and the Management of the County’s solid waste operations, including all of the financial 
matters pertaining thereto. 
Meet:  Second Thursday, of even months at 1:30 p.m. in the Empire Room of the Eric Rood Admin 
Center 
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 
 



Nevada County Economic Resource Council 
The Nevada Economic Resource Council (NCERC) is dedicated and positioned to assist in business 
attraction, creation and retention. Our NCERC professionals collaborate daily community leaders in 
business, government, changes of commerce and business associations. The ERC is your partner for 
success in Nevada County. Equipped with comprehensive up-to-date demographic data, complete 
real estate and re-location services and offering skilled personnel to assist your individual needs, the 
ERC has the tools help you build a very solid and secure business in Nevada County. 
Meet:  First Thursday of each month at 7:30 a.m. at Easterly Hall in the Realtors building. 
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 
 
Sierra Economic Development Corporation (SEDCorp) 
The Mission of SEDCorp is to alleviate unemployment and under reemployment by expanding 
industrial resource and small business development while preserving the quality of life in the Sierra 
Nevada Foothills. SEDCorp provides both technical and financial services and resources. On the 
technical side, SEDCorp acts as a liaison between business and local government funding sources. 
SEDCorp helps the public body apply for funding and provides the expertise in administration, 
marketing, loan packaging and credit approval. 
Meet:  Second Wednesday monthly 
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 
 
City Selection Committee 
Powers and Duties of the City Selection Committee pursuant to Sections 50270 et seq. of the 
California Government Code. In any county in which two or more cities are incorporated there is 
hereby created a city selection committee the purpose of which shall be to appoint city representatives 
to boards, commissions, and agencies as required by law. The current list of boards, 
committees/commissions, and agencies which the City Selection Committee appoints representatives 
to are: LAFCO, RAN, Supplemental Law Enforcement Oversight Committee, Truckee Tahoe Airport 
Land Use Commission, and Nevada County Airport Land Use Commission. The membership of each 
such city selection committee shall consist of the mayor of each city within the county. The Clerk of 
the Board of Supervisors, County of Nevada serves as the permanent Secretary and Recording 
Officer of the Committee. All City Representatives appointed by the Committee are responsible for 
exercising the duties of their positions with diligence, integrity, and the highest regard for the public 
trust and interest of the citizens of the cities within Grass Valley, Nevada City and Truckee.   
Meet: Third Monday in July annually (if there’s business to transact) 
Term Limits:  Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem 
 
Fire Joint Operations Committee 
The purpose of this committee is to provide direction to staff related to agreements supporting the joint 
operations of Nevada City Fire Dept, Grass Valley Fire Dept, and Nevada County Consolidated Fire 
Dept. 
Meet:  As necessary with the Nevada City staff and/or representatives of other fire agencies. 
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 
 
Nevada City Parks & Recreation Committee 
The purpose and intent of the Nevada City Park & Recreation Committee is to make 
recommendations to City Council regarding Park/Open space policy, procedures, and projects. The 
Nevada City Parks& Recreation Mission is to provide a system of parks, trails, recreational facilities, 
programs, and services that will enrich the lives of our citizens. Goals: 1) As a result of our unique 
position in the heart of the Motherlode, we intend to meet the needs of our citizens, while preserving 
the natural beauty and history of our city; 2) Create community through people, parks, programs and 
partnerships; 3) As programs, facilities, and services are created, Nevada City Parks & Recreation will 
make every effort to meet the needs of our diverse community. 
Meet: Fourth Wednesday of each month 
Term Limits:  Per Resolution 2015-23, Mayor appoints two City Council members to annual term, 
Mayor nominates and City Council confirms two public members every two years, who shall be either 
citizens of Nevada City or residents within the City’s Sphere of Influence, with input from Recreation 



Supervisor and Council Members on the Recreation Committee; Planning Commission appoints one 
member every two years with input from City Planner. 
 
Measure S Committee 
The Measure S Committee’s responsibility is to oversee the paving projects including tracking of 
finances, verifying streets to be paved, and ensuring that all of the criteria of the public proposition are 
followed. 
Meet:  Twice Year 
Term Limits:  Serve until replaced 
 
 



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL   City of Nevada City 
        317 Broad Street 

         Nevada City, CA  95959 
August 26, 2015      www.nevadacityca.gov 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Proposal for Terrazzo Lights Pilot Project on Lower Commercial Street 
  
RECOMMENDATION:  Authorize Nevada City Chamber of Commerce proposal for 
Terrazzo Lights Pilot Project on Lower Commercial Street. 
 
CONTACT:  Mark Prestwich, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND: The City Council previously considered adopting a policy on the use 
of temporary lighting within the Historical District on June 11, 2014. At that time, staff 
was given direction to return with a policy for temporary lighting that included working 
with the Nevada City Chamber of Commerce. Consistent with this direction, staff 
returned to the Council on October 22, 2014, with proposed Standards for Temporary 
Lighting within the Historical District Relative to Holiday Lighting and Special Events 
that was adopted on a 4-1 vote (see Resolution 2014-44 attached). Those adopted 
Standards included oversight of the holiday lighting program by the Chamber of 
Commerce and a directive for working with the Chamber to manage specific lighting 
for Chamber-sponsored events.  
 
In addition to adoption of the above Resolution on October 22, the Council directed 
staff to work with the Chamber to evaluate other alternative lighting sources. While 
additional time is necessary to complete work in this area, the City has received 
preliminary feedback from the Sierra Business Council that opportunities exist to 
improve the energy efficiency of roof-line and exterior lighting in the historical district. 
There also may be opportunities to streamline the approval process for exterior 
lighting fixtures.  
 
DISCUSSION: At the City Council’s July 22, 2015 meeting, Vice Mayor Evans Phelps 
requested the City Council place an agenda item on a future agenda to discuss a 
proposal by the Nevada City Chamber of Commerce to consider authorizing terrazzo 
lights over lower Commercial Street as a pilot project. 
 
The City received a letter (attached) from the Chamber, dated August 19, outlining a 
year-long pilot project, which includes the strategy for hanging the lights, maintenance, 
and strategies for review. Staff recommends authorizing the pilot project with the 
following added suggestions and reviewing the pilot project at the first City Council 
meeting of September 2016: 
 
- Specify the addresses of buildings where lights will be hung 
- Confirm authorization from building owners 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  None. 
 



FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:  Not applicable. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:    

  
 August 19, 2015 letter from the Nevada City Chamber of Commerce 
 Resolution 2014-44 – Standards for Temporary Lighting Within the Historical 

District 















REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 

         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 

August 26, 2015       www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

TITLE:  Nevada City Strategic Economic Investment Fund 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Review and provide direction to the City Manager to prepare 
draft Strategic Economic Investment Fund guidelines to support programs and projects 
that benefit the City’s long-term economic development goals. 
 
CONTACT:  Mark Prestwich, City Manager; Catrina Olson, Assistant City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  The City’s recently adopted economic development 
strategy, NCFORWARD, includes a specific objective to identify long-range funding 
options to support and reduce impediments to one-time strategic economic growth 
opportunities. The purpose of this report is to introduce and receive feedback on options 
and strategies for the possible establishment of a Nevada City Strategic Economic 
Investment Fund.  
 
It is important to distinguish this discussion from the City’s continuing practice of 
providing nominal financial support to various local organizations. In the past three fiscal 
years, the City has appropriated between $250 and $3,125 to various community 
organizations. Examples include funding school assemblies on water conservation 
provided by the South Yuba River Citizens League (SYRCL), the Magic Lantern Nevada 
City Film Festival, Nevada County Economic Resource Council, Nevada County 
Television, and the Constitution Day Parade. The City also provides annual operational 
funding to the Nevada County Narrow Gauge Railroad Museum (currently $9,500) and 
directs 8% of its Transient Occupancy Tax revenues to the Nevada City Chamber of 
Commerce (estimated at $22,000 in Fiscal Year 2015/16). 
 
The idea of establishing a Strategic Economic Investment Fund was conceived as a 
means of leveraging City resources with other private and public investment for unique 
one-time economic development opportunities such as the American Digital Media 
Leadership Campus that offer the potential for a substantial long-term economic benefit 
to the City.  
 
Staff recommends establishment of a Strategic Economic Investment Fund that 
includes a clear statement of program criteria, provides guidance on the use of funds, 
and articulates eligibility requirements. Sample information is provided below. 
 
 
 
 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


Program Criteria (Example): 

 Diversifies the local economy 

 Promotes economic vitality in Nevada City 

 Achieve a return on investment 

 Invests in “high growth” industries and markets 

 Leverages other resources to create and retain employment 

 Meets/supports NCFORWARD economic plan goals 
 
Use of Funds (Example): 

 Programs and/or projects must be located in the City of Nevada City 

 All applications will be reviewed by the City Council on a first-come, first-served 
basis and will be subject to funding availability 

 City Council reserves right to designate how much funding is allocated annually 

 City Council reserves right to cancel program at any time 
 
Eligibility (Example): 

 Consistency with program criteria 

 Studies required for development or delivery of a specific project 

 One-time funding to a legal business, event or project that might not otherwise 
move forward on its own and has a substantial economic development benefit to 
the City 

 
Based on an evaluation of anticipated possible investments and available resources, it 
is recommended the City consider seeding the Strategic Economic Investment Fund 
with $50,000 to $100,000. Additional consideration should be given to strategies for 
contributing annual appropriations to restore the balance of the fund, and evaluation of 
economic impacts associated with use of fund proceeds. 
 
Possible sources for seed funding are summarized below: 
 
   $  56K (Measure L reserve balance) 
       10K (Cost-savings from sidewalk assessment) 

     35K (CDBG-funded portion of Pioneer Park bathrooms)* 
      8K (City donation account) 

           $109K TOTAL 
 

*Available if CDBG grant application is funded 

 
Staff recommends the City Council review the proposed options and strategies for 
seeding a Strategic Economic Investment Fund and direct the City Manager to prepare 
and present draft guidelines for City Council review at a future meeting. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: Not applicable. 
 



FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: Establishment of a Strategic Economic Investment 
Fund positions the City to attract public and private investment in projects and initiatives 
that lead to local economic growth.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  None. 
 



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL   City of Nevada City 

        317 Broad Street 
        Nevada City CA 95959 
        www.nevadacityca.gov 

August 26, 2015 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Consideration of Supporting a Stage Host Application for The Amgen 
Tour of California  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Authorize the City to contribute toward local host expenses if 
Nevada City is selected as a Stage Host for The Amgen Tour of California in an amount 
to be determined by the City Council. 
 
CONTACT:  Mark Prestwich, City Manager; Catrina Olson, Assistant City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  Nevada City has served as a host city for The Amgen 
Tour of California professional men’s bicycle race for three of its 10 events, including 
the start of Stage 2 in May 2015 (the primary exposure being at the beginning and end 
of a stage). This Tour de France-style eight-stage cycling road race is presented by 
AEG Cycling and regularly attracts the world’s top cyclists, including Olympic medalists, 
to compete on a circuit showcasing California. Local volunteers have indicated interest 
in submitting an application to serve as a stage host in 2016 which requires additional 
financial resources to be identified before submitting proposals. 
 
As a stage host, Nevada City merchants benefit from the economic boost associated 
with hosting the event (lodging, security, food and beverage) as well as the continued 
positive impacts associated with the local, national and international marketing 
exposure. As a stage host, Nevada City enjoys significant marketing exposure, which 
also benefits Grass Valley and western Nevada County. The Nevada City Chamber of 
Commerce has reported an increase in visitors to the City associated to the marketing 
of the Amgen Tour of California. Sierra Nevada Memorial Hospital and many local non-
profits identify the Amgen Tour of California, as well as the Nevada City Classic Bicycle 
Race as the biggest events promoting a healthy lifestyle to the community and its youth. 
 
The Amgen Tour of California has grown to be the largest annual spectator sporting 
event in California and the largest cycling race in North America. The race is broadcast 
is more than 200 countries and each of these shows played a locally-produced 30-
second video profile on Nevada City, a benefit provided to stage hosts. NBC Sports 
carried Stage 2 live which included 7.2 million actual viewers worldwide according to 
Nielsen ratings. An NBC Sports Prime Time Eve replay of Stage 2 resulted in 12.3 
million actual viewers. When billboards, posters, radio interviews and other advertising 
is considered, total actual media impressions for Stage 2 equate to 73.5 million 
worldwide.  
 
Local stage hosting expenses are estimated at $50,000. Historically, these funds have 
been raised by volunteers. However, due to a fundraising gap associated with the 2015 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


event, local race volunteers are seeking City financial support to assist with host 
expenses paid to Nevada County businesses for their services. City staff has been 
advised that $40,000 has already been secured for an application via sponsorship. 
 
Staff has identified and supports utilizing the following source funds up to $10,000 
should the City Council authorize financial support for future host bid.  
 

Possible Sources of Funds: 
o $8,000 – Donation Account 
o $5,000 – Measure L 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS:  Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The benefit received by the City is indirect in terms of increased 
business and tourists.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  None 
 



REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL    City of Nevada City 
         317 Broad Street 
         Nevada City, CA  95959 
August 26, 2015       www.nevadacityca.gov 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  Placement of Council-Requested Items on City Council Agendas 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Discuss and provide direction to the City Manager. 
 
CONTACT:  Mark Prestwich, City Manager 
 
BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:  The City of Nevada City does not have a written policy 
related to how Council Members request items be placed on City Council agendas. The 
City’s practice has generally consisted of City Council requests being made during 
Council meetings. The City’s agenda format facilitates this practice by inclusion of a 
recurring agenda item titled “Council Members Requested Items and Committee Reports” 
where Council Members may request items be brought forward in the future for 
discussion. Additionally, the City’s annual strategic planning process has provided an 
opportunity for City Council Members to identify policy issues, projects and goals that 
routinely result in placement of items on future Council agendas. 
 
Clarification is needed regarding how to prioritize agenda item requests submitted by 
Council Members outside of a public meeting, particularly requests related to placing 
items for discussion on the next Council Meeting agenda. Several options have been 
developed for City Council consideration based on a review of other cities’ practices: 
 

• Option A - Public Session Only. Council Members may submit items for inclusion 
on a future agenda by orally making the request under “Council Members 
Requested Items and Committee Reports” during a public meeting. (Some cities 
require two or three Council Members to agree before the item is agreed to be 
placed on a future agenda and staff time is invested in the issue.)  
 

• Option B - Anytime. Council Members may submit items for inclusion on a 
specified future agenda at any time. (Clarity related to expectations regarding 
supporting agenda materials and whether to provide discretion to the City Manager 
on how to title the subject matter would be needed. If this option is selected, It is 
recommended that consideration be given to limiting requests made outside a 
public meeting to no more than two items per Council Member per meeting.) 
 

• Option C - City Manager Discretion. If the Council Member requested item is 
submitted less than 21 days prior to a meeting, the City Manager is provided 
discretion on whether to place the item on the next agenda or advise the Council 
at the next meeting of the Council Member request. (Consideration would be given 
to evaluation of staff workload, anticipated length of planned meeting, ability to 
adequately prepare item for a productive public deliberation, or whether another 
approach exists to address/resolve the issue.) 

http://www.nevadacityca.gov/


• Option D - Mayor Discretion. Mayor approves individual Council Member agenda 
requests submitted less than 21 days prior to a meeting. 
 

• Option E - Mayor and Vice Mayor or Council Committee approves Council 
Member agenda requests submitted less than 21 days prior to a meeting. 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS: Not applicable. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS: None. 
 
ATTACHMENT: None. 
 


	1-REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 08.26.2015.pdf
	WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 26, 2015
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	3A - Award Measure S 2015 Paving Contract
	3B-Stfrpt - Acceptance of Donations
	3C-1 - Stfrpt Surplus Vehicles
	3C-2 - Reso -Declaring Various Vehicles for Surplus
	3D - Quarterly Sales Tax Update
	3E-1 Hirschmans Pond Land Managemetn Plan MOU
	3E-2 Draft MOU for grant
	3F-1 Sugarloaf Land Management Plan Letter of Support
	3F-2 Draft Letter of Support
	3G-1 - Stfrpt - Bad Debt Write-Off 2014-15
	3G-2 - Reso - 2015-XX - Bad Debt Write Off FY 2014-15
	4A - Minutes 08.12.15.Draft
	6A-Rezoning
	7A-1-Stfrpt Development Agreement
	7A-2-Development Agreeement Ord 2015-XX
	7A-3-Proposed Development Agreement
	7A-4-Development Agreement - Clean Version
	8A-1-City Council Appointments
	8A-2-Committee-Commission Descriptions
	8B-1-Terrazzo Lights
	8B-2-Letter from Chamber of Commerce
	8B-3-Resolution 2014-14
	8C-Strategic Investment Fund
	8D-Amgen Stage Host
	8E-Council Member Requested Agenda Item Procedure

